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) 
GREG AND PAMELA GIBSON ) Docket No. TSCA-07-2009-0006 
Neosho, Missouri ) 

)
 
Respondents )
 

CONSENT AGREEMENT AND FINAL ORDER 

The U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA), Region 7 and Greg and Pamela 

Gibson (Respondents) have agreed to a settlement of this action before filing of a complaint, and 

thus this action is simultaneously conmmenced and concluded pursuant to Rules 22.l3(b) and 

22.18(b)(2) of the Consolidated Rules of Practice Governing the Administrative Assessment of 

Civil Penalties, Issuance of Compliance or Corrective Action Orders, and the Renovation, 

Termination or Suspension of Permits (Consolidated Rules), 40 C.F.R. §§ 22. 13(b) and 

22.18(b)(2). 

FACTUAL ALLEGATIONS
 

Jurisdiction
 

1. This proceeding is an administrative action for the assessment of civil penalties 

instituted pursuant to Section l6(a) of the Toxic Substances Control Act (TSCA), 15 U.S.c. 

§ 2615(a). 

2. This Consent Agreement and Final Order serves as notice that EPA has reason to 

believe that Respondents have violated Section 409 of TSCA, 15 U.S.C. § 2689, by failing to 

comply with the regulatory requirements of 40 C.F.R. Part 745, Subpart F, Disclosure ofKnown 
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Lead-Based Paint and/or Lead-Based Paint Hazards Upon Sale or Lease ofResidential 

Property, promulgated pursuant to Section 1018 ofthe Residential Lead-Based Paint Hazard 

Reduction Act of 1992, 42 U.S.C. § 4852d. 

Parties 

3. The Complainant, by delegation from the Administrator of the EPA, is the Chief, 

Toxics and Pesticides Branch, EPA, Region 7. 

4. The Respondents are Greg and Pamela Gibson, 11213 Nighthawk Road, Neosho, 

Missouri 64850. 

Statutory and RegulatoryBackground 

5. Congress passed the Residential Lead-Based Paint Hazard Reduction Act of 1992 (the 

Act), 42 U.S.C. §§ 4851 to 4856, to address the need to control exposure to lead-based paint 

hazards. The Act amended TSCA by adding Sections 401 to 412, 15 U.S.C. §§ 2681 to 2692. 

Section 1018 of the Act required EPA and the Department of Housing and Urban Development 

(HUD) to jointly issue regulations requiring the disclosure of known lead-based paint and/or 

lead-based paint hazards by persons selling or leasing housing constructed before the phaseout of 

residential lead-based paint use in 1978. The regulations, issued March 6, 1996, and codified at 

40 C.F.R. Part 745 Subpart F, require that sellers and lessors of most residential housing built 

before 1978: a) disclose the presence of known lead-based paint and/or lead-based paint hazards 

in the target housing; b) provide.purchasers and lessees with any available records or reports 

pertaining to the presence oflead-based paint and/or lead-based paint hazards; c) provide 

purchasers and lessees with a federally approved lead hazard information pamphlet; d) provide 

purchasers with a 10-day opportunity to conduct a risk assessment or inspection for the presence 

Page 2 of 13 



IN THE MATTER OF Greg and Pamela Gibson 
Docket No. TSCA-07-2009-0006 

oflead-based paint and/or lead-based paint hazards before the purchaser is obligated under any 

purchase contract; and e) include certain disclosure and acknowledgment language in the sales or 

leasing contract. The failure or refusal to comply with the regulations is a violation of Section 

1018 of the Act and Section 409 ofTSCA. 

Alleged Violations 

6. The Complainant hereby states and alleges that Respondents have violated TSCA and 

federal regulations promulgated thereunder, as follows: 

Count 1 

7. Respondents are, and at all times referred to herein were, "persons" within the 

meaning of TSCA. 

8. The Properties leased by Respondents were constructed before 1978; therefore, they 

are "target housing" as that term is defined by 40 C.F.R. § 745.103. 

9. Respondents are the "lessors," as that term is defined by 40 C.F.R. § 745.103, of a 

residential housing unit located at 216 S. Lafayette St., #1 ("the Property"). 

10. Information collected during an EPA review of Respondents' records on August 19, 

2008, shows that Respondents entered into a contract to lease the Property on March 11, 2007. 
• 

11. Information collected shows that Respondents failed to provide the lessee of the 

Property managed by Respondents with an EPA-approved lead hazard information pamphlet or 

to perform any other lead-based paint disclosure activities before lessee was obligated under the 

contract to lease the target housing units managed by Respondents. 

12. Respondents' failure to provide an EPA-approved lead hazard information pamphlet 

is a violation of 40 C.F.R.§ 745.107(a)(l) and, in accordance with 40 C.F.R. § 745.118(e), a 
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violation of Section 1018 of the Act, 42 U.S.C. § 4852d, and Section 209 of TSCA, 15 U.S.C. 

§ 2689, and thus Respondents are subject to civil penalties under Section 16 ofTSCA, 15 U.S.C. 

§ 2615. 

Count 2 

13. Respondents are, and at all times referred to herein were, "persons" within the 

meaning of TSCA. 

14. The Properties leased by Respondents were constructed before 1978; therefore, they 

are "target housing" as that term is defined by 40 C.F.R. § 745.103. 

15. Respondents are the "lessors," as that term is defined by 40 C.F.R. § 745.103, of a 

residential housing unit located at 120 S. Jefferson St., #2 ("the Property"). 

16. Information collected during an EPA review of Respondents' records on August 19, 

2008, shows that Respondents entered into a contract to lease the Property on March 18, 2006. 

17. Information collected shows that Respondents failed to provide the lessee of the 

Property managed by Respondents with an EPA-approved lead hazard information pamphlet or 

to perform any other lead-based paint disclosure activities before lessee was obligated under the 

contract to lease the target housing units managed by Respondent. 

18. Respondents' failure to provide an EPA-approved lead hazard information pamphlet 

is a violation of 40 C.F.R. § 745.107(a)(1) and, in accordance with 40 C.F.R. § 745.118(e), a 

violation of Section 1018 of the Act, 42 U.S.C. § 4852d, and Section 209 ofTSCA, 15 U.S.C. 

§ 2689, and thus Respondents are subject to civil penalties under Section 16 ofTSCA, 15 U.S.C. 

§ 2615. 
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CONSENT AGREEMENT 

19. For purposes ofthis proceeding, Respondents admit the jurisdictional allegations set 

forth above. 

20. Respondents admit the factual allegations set forth above. 

21. Respondents waive their right to a judicial or administrative hearing on any issue of 

fact or law set forth above and its right to appeal the Final Order accompanying this Consent 

Agreement. 

22. Respondents and EPA agree to conciliate this matter without the necessity of a 

formal hearing and to bear their respective costs and attorney's fees. 

23. Respondents certify by the signing of this Consent Agreement and Final Order that 

to the best of Respondents' lrnowledge, they are presently in compliance with all requirements of 

40 C.F.R. Part 745, Subpart F. 

24. In settlement of this matter, Respondents agree to complete the following 

Supplemental Environmental Project (SEP), which the parties agree is intended to secure 

significant environmental and/or public health benefits at 120 South Jefferson, Neosho, Missouri 

64850, which is target housing owned by Respondents. Respondents shall by and through a 

certified lead abatement contractor, at the cost of not less Thirteen Thousand Eight Hundred and 

Sixty Dollars ($13,860), remove and replace windows within the target housing in accordance 

with the Respondents' SEP Work Plan (attached hereto as Attachment A and incorporated by 

reference). 

25. Within thirty (30) days of the effective date ofthe Final Order, Respondents will 

provide EPA with a copy ofthe letter sent to Missouri Department of Health & Senior Services 
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Lead Licensing Program informing the State of its intent to perform a lead-based paint 

abatement SEP and requesting procedural information pertaining to performance of the SEP. 

26. The total expenditure for the SEP shall be not less than Thirteen Thousand Eight 

Hundred and Sixty Dollars ($13,860) and the SEP shall be completed no later than 120 days 

from the effective date of the Final Order. All work required to complete the SEP shall be 

performed in compliance with all federal, state, and local laws and regulations. 

27. Respondents agree that the construction work on all SEPs referenced in Paragraph 24 

above will be performed by entities licensed and/or certified to handle, inspect, and/or dispose of 

lead-based-paint contaminated waste. 

28. Within thirty (30) days of completion oftheSEP, Respondents shall submit a SEP 

Completion Report to EPA, with a copy to the state agency identified below. The SEP 

Completion Report shall contain the following: 

(i) A detailed description of the SEP as implemented; 

(ii) Itemized costs, documented by copies of purchase orders, receipts or canceled 

checks; 

(iii) The final abatement report, as required by state law; and 

(iv) The following certification signed by Respondents: 

We certify under penalty of law that we have examined and are familiar 
with the information submitted in this document and all attachments and 
that, based on our inquiry of those individuals immediately responsible for 
obtaining the information, the information is true, accurate, and complete. 
We are aware that there are significant penalties for submitting false 
information, including the possibility of fines and imprisonment. 
(Signature) 

(v) The report shall be directed to the following: 
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As to EPA:
 
Stephven Richard, WWPD/TOPE
 
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Region 7
 
901 N. 5th Street
 
Kansas City, Kansas 66101.
 

As to the state:
 
Brandon Rekus
 
Department of Health & Senior Services
 
Lead Licensing Program
 
Post Office Box 570
 
Jefferson City, Missouri 65102-0570
 

29. If the SEP referenced in Paragraph 24 above is not timely completed to the 

satisfaction of EPA in accordance with the terms of this Final Order, Respondents shall pay' a 

stipulated penalty in the amount of Sixteen Thousand Six Hundred and Thirty-Two dollars 

($16,632), minus any documented expenditures determined by EPA to be acceptable for the 

SEP, for a total equal to 120% of the projected costs ofthe SEP. For the SEP, the following 

instances constitute a failure to complete the project in accordance with the terms of this Final 

Order: 

(i) Failure to expend the funds in a manner acceptable to EPA or otherwise 

to complete the project pursuant to the terms of this consent agreement. 

(ii) Failure to ensure, through good faith and timely efforts, that the SEP 

project is completed by the anticipated completion date of within ninety (90) days of 

the effective date of the Final Order. In the event of circumstances beyond its control 

rendering the anticipated completion date unfeasible, Respondents may demonstrate 

good faith by promptly notifying the EPA Region 7 contact identified in Paragraph 28 

above of the change in circumstances and proposing a new completion date acceptable 

to EPA for the SEP. 

Page 7 of 13 



IN THE MATTER OF Greg and Pamela Gibson
 
Docket No. TSCA-07-2009-0006
 

(iii) Any stipulated penalties for which Respondents are liable under this 

agreement shall be due and payable within ten (10) days of Respondents' receipt ofa 

written demand from Complainant. 

30. Respondents certify that they are not required to perform or develop the SEP by any 

federal, state or local law or regulation; nor are Respondents required to perform or develop the 

SEP by agreement, grant or as injunctive relief in this or any other case or to comply with state 

or local requirements. Respondents further certifY that Respondents have not received, and are 

not presently negotiating to receive, credit in any other enforcement action for the SEP. 

31. Any public statement, oral or written, in print, film or other media, made by 

Respondents making reference to the SEP shall include the following language: "This project 

was undertaken in connection with the settlement of an enforcement action taken by the United 

States Environmental Protection Agency." 

32. Respondents consent to the issuance of the Final Order hereinafter recited and 

consents to the payment of a civil penalty in the amount of One Thousand Five Hundred and 

Forty Dollars ($1,540) to be paid within thirty (30) days of the effective date of the Final Order. 

Payment of this civil penalty shall resolve all civil and administrative claims for all violations of 

Section 409 ofTSCA, 15 U.S.C. 2689 and 40 C.F.R. Subpart F alleged in this document. 

33. Respondents understand that their failure to timely pay any portion of the mitigated 

civil penalty stated in Paragraph 32 above or any portion of a stipulated penalty as stated in 

Paragraph 24 above may result in the commencement of a civil action in Federal District Court to 

recover the full remaining balance, along with penalties and accumulated interest. In such case, 

. interest shall accrue thereon at the applicable statutory rate on the unpaid balance until such civil 
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or stipulated penalty and any accrued interest are paid in full. A late payment handling charge of 

$15 will be imposed after thirty (30) days and an additional $15 will be charge for each subsequent 

thirty (30) day period. Additionally, as provided by 31 U.S.C. § 3717(e)(2), a six percent (6%) per 

annum penalty (late charge) may be assessed on any amount not paid within ninety (90) days of 

the due date. 

34. No portion of the civil penalty or interest paid or inoniesexpended on the SEP by 

Respondents pursuant to the requirements of this Consent Agreement and Final Order shall be 

claimed by Respondents as a deduction for federal, state, or local income tax purposes. 

35. The undersigned representative of Respondents certify that he or she is fully 

authorized to enter into the terms and conditions ofthis Consent Agreement and Final Order and 

to execute and legally bind. Respondents to it. 

FINAL ORDER 

Pursuant to the provisions of the Toxic Substances Control Act (TSCA), 15 U.S.C. 

§§2601-2692, and based upon the information set forth in the Consent Agreement accompanying 

this Final Order, IT IS HEREBY ORDERED THAT: 

I. Respondents shall pay a mitigated civil penalty of One Thousand Five Hundred and 

Forty Dollars ($1,540) within thirty (30) days of the effective date of this Final Order. Such 

payment shall identify the Respondents by name and docket number and shall be by Certified 

or Cashier'S Check made payable to the "United States Treasury" and sent to: 

US Environmental Protection Agency
 
Fines and Penalties
 
Cincinnati Finance Center
 
PO Box 979077
 
St. Louis, MO 63197-9000
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2. A copy of the check or other information confirming payment shall simultaneously be 

sent to the following: 

Regional Hearing Clerk 
u.s. Environmental Protection Agency, Region 7 
90I N, 5th Street . .
 
Kansas City, Kansas 66101; and
 

Kristen Nazar, Attorney
 
Office of Regional Counsel
 
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Region 7
 
901 N. 5th Street
 
Kansas City, Kansas 6610 I.
 

3. Respondents shall complete the Supplemental Environmental Project in accordance 

with the provisions set forth in the Consent Agreement and shall be liable for any stipulated 

penalty for failure to complete such project as specified in the Consent Agreement. 

4. Respondents and Complainant shall each bear their own costs and attorneys' fees 

incurred as a result of this matter. 
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GREG AND PAMELA GIBSON 

Date: By: 

~\b)\\2R 2 
Title 

Date: By: "2?,,~~~mD 
~W\Q :\.C-?\t>::oN QJmMh)

Print Name Title 
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COMPLAINANT 
U. S. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY' 

Date: ?.//I/6 l' . . ( 
By: v.t/ 

a . ie Green, Chief 
xics and Pesticides Branch 

Water, Wetlands, and Pesticides Division 

Date: :2.) f I,/ fJ L By: 
Kristen Nazar, Attorney 
Office of Regional Counsel 
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IT IS SO ORDERED. This Order shall become effective immediately. 

Date: 121 Ie: lfJoj &;;:t;;z:;fi2k£
I· ROBERTL. PATRICK 

Regional Judicial Officer 
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Region 7 
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SEP Work Plan
 



Abatement SEP Work Plan
 

Respondents: Greg and Pamela Gibson
 

1.	 Address OfTarget Housing: 120 South Jefferson, Neosho,MO 64850 

2.	 Property Owner: Greg and Pamela Gibson, 11213 Nighthawk Road, Neosho, MO 64850 

3.	 Property is currently occupied. 

4. Scope of work: Lead-based paint abatement work to be performed at the target housing identified above 
will include the removal and replacement ofall first level lead-based painted windows with leadfree windows. All 
work must be performed by and/or under the supervision oflicensed/certified lead-based paint professionals, 
following the required safe work practices and all other requirements. All work must be performed in accordance 
with all applicable federal, state, and local laws and regulations.. 

5.	 Licensed lead-based professionals/fIrm: 
Gerken Environmental Enterprises, Inc, 1528 W Vernon Street, Springfield, MO 65802 (417) 863-7254 

6.	 Cost Estimate: $13,860 

7. Work Start: The Missouri Department ofHealth and Human Services Lead Licensing Program must 
receive written notice before the work is started on a lead-based paint abatement project. Within thirty days ofthe 
effective date ofthe consent agreementljinal order, this written notification must be provided to the state, and copies 
must be provided to the Saint Louis County Health Department and EPA Region 7. 

8. Work Completion Date: All work must be completed within one hundred and twenty days ofthe effective 
date ofthe consent agreementljinal order. 

9. Report Completion Date: The SEP Completion Report must be completed and submitted to EPA Region 7, 
and a copy sent to the state, within thirty days after the completion ofthe SEP. 

This report must include: 
• A detailed description ofthe SEP as ilflplemented 
• Itemized costs, documented by copies ofpurchase orders, receipts or canceled checks 
• the final abatement report prepared by the contractor, as required by state law. 

EPA will review the final SEP report and notifY the Respondent whether the report is, or is not, satisfactory. 

Mailing Addresses for NotifIcations and Reports described above: 

EPA Region 7.	 Missouri Department ofHealth and Senior Services 
901 North5'h Street Lead Licensing Program 
WWPD/TOPE Attention: Brandon Rews 
Attention: Stephven Richard 930 Wildwood 
901 North 5'h Street Jefferson City, MO 65109 
Kansas City, KS 66101 



, I
 

~ 
."'"

""" ;' 
... " ". , ", 

GERKEN 
ENVIRONMENTAL ENTERPRISES, INC 

November 6, 2008 

Mr. Greg Gibson 
Property Owner 
11213 Nighthawk Road 

Neosho, Mis.so.uri 64850 

RE: Lead-Based Paint Window Removal & Replacement Proposal 
Re5ident;af PropertV It 120South Jeffemm .. Neosh:;" rIIissolrri 

Mr. Gibson: 

Pl"oiectScope of Work
 
Removal.and disposal of lead-based piI'int containing window units within mulUple apartment units as shown by Mr~
 

Gibson.
 

General Proposal Conditions 

(II The facility owner/contractor shall remove all ~ovable items from each work ilIrea. 
•	 The facititY ownerfcontractor shall supply all required water and sufficient electricity t'o ~ach work. ar!,!Ci. 
..	 The facility owner/contractor shall obtain'. and hold in good standing insurance-with coverage including but not 

limited to firer torn ado" flood ing, etc. during the entire term ohhis contract. 
•	 ThefaciUtV ownerfcontractorshall be responslble for all required independent third party air monitoring as may be 

required by state and loca~ regulations ,unless otherwise, stated within this proposal. 
e	 The facility owner/contractor -shall be responsible for all required project design documentation whidi may be 

required by state or local reguliltlon unless otherwise stated within this proposal. . ­
•	 Gerken Environmental has not included anv replacement materials unless otj1erw'i$e stated within thiS proposal. 
•	 Gerken Environmental shall obtain and hold in good standing workman's compensation, public and lead liability 

insurance as reQuired by state, and federal regulatJons throughout the duration oftllis pre::tposaL 
I) Gerken Environmental shall complete' this 'contract utilizing-federa\'and state licensed lead abatement personnel" 

where re-tluired. 
..	 Gerken Environmenta\ will take every precaution to minimize damages v.mich may be caused by tape and other 

materials utilized to complete this proposal. However, Gerken 'Environmental shall not be: held liable for any 
damage to walls, floor finishes. paint,. fixtures; etc. which may become d~nnaged during the abatement process 
unless otherwise stated within this proposal. 

... Gerken Environmental has not included ~ny worl< to be completed upon the north side of the 9uftding. 

.. All abatement se,:"ic.es as defined by this propos.al shall be completed in one (ll phase, In fifteen (15) working days. 

,',' - - .. -- 1528VJiisr·MT. vs,,;;» STREEt1smNGRii.D;-MISsOURl 65802 
P: 417.863.7254 1 F:417,863.8483 ' 1 TF: 888.28Z.'7898 

wwW.geikenenvlronmental.com 
ASBESl'OS I LEAl> I BIOLOGICAL I OEMOLITION 

lSSZ-l91rHv d6S:W 80 OZ "oN 
;;6:1SStl6 0i 9SEtl1S~16t 10lj ~dHI (1\1900ll0Un 
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Mr. Greg Gibson 
\.ead>Based Paint Cont;;linlng Window Remoital aad Replacement Proposal November 6, 20D8 

Payment Terms 

Application for payment shall be submitted upon project commencement. this payment application shall be .submitted 
covering costs associated with mobilization to the project site, as weir as.-lllSurance fee's, bonding fee's, etc. Additional 
progress payments shall be submitted on the last Thursday of each. month. Final ilpplication for payment snaJl be submitted 
with project dose-out-documentatlon; p'ayrnent shall be rendered upon receipt, f~rdless of whether Client has been, or is 
to bel reimbursed by any other partY. Client shall notify Gerken ira writIng of any disputed' amount within fifteen '{;l5) 
calendar days of invoice, otherwise an invoke charges are agreed and 'acceptable. C!lent agrees to pay service charges of 
one and one half percent (1,5%) per month on accounts 30 davs past due. Any col.lection costs will be assessed to the 
Client. which the Client agrees to pay) inc:luding but not limited to,court costs and attorneys fees. 

Le.ad Abatement Fees 

Removal and disposal of window units containing lead-based paint within multiple units of the aboVe referenced property; 
in addition to pfovidlng and Installing new window UllitS as described with 1:he above scope of work.. for the sum of: 

. $582.00 per singlewindoiN I $886.00 per double window 

AddlAltern ate Fees 

Inclusion of independent third party air monitoring on a daily basis, for the sum of; $00,000.00 
In~lusion of independent third partyiinal clear;;lnce air mOllitoring per work area, for the sum of: $00,000.00 
Inclusion of asbestos abatement project design {required in Arkansas), for the sum of: $00,000.00 
Add work are-as, for the sum of: . $00,000.00 
Add work areas, for the sum of: $00,000.00 

Total projeet cost incluiJing all Add!Alternate fees: $0,000.00 

The ahove described work shall be performed in accordance with aU drawings and specifications submitted for the above 
defin"ed 'work and shtlll be 'complete91n actordan<:e' with the above General Conditions and the attached Terms and 
Conditions for Environmerttal Services agreement. 

Thank you for the opportunitY to provide this proposal for services. If you have any Questions regarding this proposal.. or\f I 
may be of further service to you. please do nat hesitate to contact me at 417.B63.7254. 11001< forward to hearing from you 
soon. 

Respectfully, 

/-17/-?-­
Gl"eg A.. Gerken 
Vlc:e President 
GERKEN ENvIRONMENTAt ENTERl'll.lSIS, INc. 

Sd l£8l-19j>-Llj> d6£:1O 80 Ol AON 
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Mr. Greg Gibson 
LeCtd-Based Paint Containing Wlodow Remi)'l/al and f!,ep:acement PropoSal November 6~ 2008 

Terms and Conditions for Environmental Services Agreement 

These terms and conditions are a part and are incorporated into the abqve Proposal for Asbestos Abatement Services. All 
agreements from this pOint forward will be agreements between GEAKEN ENVIROI\IMENTAl. ENTERPRlSES",I"'c.. (GERKEN) and Mr. 
Greg Gibson hereby referred to as Client. 

Insurance: GERKEN maintains Workers Compensation and (;ieneral liability Insurance in conformance, with all applicable 
state law. certificates- .of insurance evidencing such coverage wi1l be provided,; if requested. In the event Client requests 
GERKEN to name Client as an additional insured all GERI{EN"S General UabiUty or other instlrnnce policies, Client agrees to pay 
anv increased premium charge to GERKEN for such endorsement. 

Standard of Care and Warranties: lheservic:es will be performed for the benefit of dient. The services conducted by 

Gerken will be performed in a reasonable and prudent manner in accordance with generally acceptabl€: industry standards 
in effect at the time and place of the work.. Gerken makes 1'\0 representations or warranties to Client concerning the 
accuracy of estimated quantities of materials or waste or cost's made in connection with the wotJ<,. ctrent acknowledges 
these shall be estimat;es only which are subject to revision as the work proceeds and conditions on site are encountered. 
and that such revisions may affect the cost of the work and Gerken's fee hereunder. 

Excegt as set forth herein. Gerken makes no other representation. guarantee. or- warranty. express or implied. in fact or by 
law, whether of rnerchantahility, fitness for any particular purpose or otherwise concerning .any of the services or 

, documents which may' be furnished by GmK.EN to CHent. 

Limitation on the Scope·of,Services:: dient acknowledges that GERKEN has not arranged for or participated in generating, 
treating, storing or disposing of hazardous; or toxic substanc.es~ pollutants and contaminants or other waste materials which 
may be present at the site of GERKEN'S work. Anv waste materials generated by or co'rtnected Wi\tl6ERKEN'5s~rvicesshaH at 
no time became tl!'e property of GEIU(EN. Nothing herein shall requIre GeRKEN to assume the statos of a generator, 
transporter or a storage treatment or disposal facility as those terms are de,fined' by the Resource ConsefV<l.tion and 
Recovery Act~ or any federal. state or local statue or regulation governing the generation~treatment, storage or disposal QJ 
hazardous waste or SDJld waste. if GERKENtS services include the transportation of wast~ materials from the site, GERKE" may 
evaluate and recom'mend possibl~ ·disposal sites for Client's use. Client Cldcnowledges that GERICEt'f does ,not 'accept 
ownership. title or responsibl1ity for Qient's waste or responsibility' for the disposal of any waste materials. dient agrees 
that it shall evaluate and "select" the transporter and the site treatment or disposal of its waste materials and shall be 
solely respo!1sible: therefore. Arrangements made by GERKEN for treatment, storage, transport or disposal of any waste 
material shall be construed :as being made solely for Client's be.nefit·and Client shallindemnifyi defend and hold harmless 
GERKEN against atl daims. damages, losses, liability, civil penalties, fines: and expeOSe5, il1duding but· not limited to 
attornev~s fees. which arise there from. . ' 

Umitations of GERKEN'S Liabilitv to Client: Except for circumstances caused by the wi11ful'misoonduct of GERK£N, an claims for 
damages asserted against GERKEN by Client, induding claims asserted ~gainst GERKEN'S directors, Q~jcersl shareholder. 
employees and agents are lim'~ed to the greater of (lJ $25,000,00 or (21 the total sum to be paid to GERKEN under this 
contract. GERKUt is not rEsponsible for .any special. incidental, indirect, or consequential damages (induding loss. of profits. 
or buslnes.s interruption) Incurred by Client as a result of GERKEN·S performance or nonperformance of services. Any claim 
shall be deemed waived unless made by Client In writing and received by GERKEN Within ooe (1) year after completion of the 
services. 

., .... 

,£\Z-,9t-Ht d6£:1:0 80 01: AON 
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Mr. Greg Gibson 
lead-Based PaInt Containing; Window RemoiJal and Replacement Proposal November 6, 2008. 

Clients Indemnification: Clikllt shall indemnrrV and hold harmless GERKEN, and it's shareholders... directors, officers, 
employees and agents against all losses. damages, claims 9r causes of action, and all costs incidental thereto (jl1duding but 
not Iirnited to costs of defense; settlement and attorney's fees) whleh l::my or all of them 
may incur. resulting from bodily Injuries (or death) to any person. damage [inclUding loss or use) to any property. or 
com:amination of or adverse effects on the environment, arising out of or which are in an" way ca!Jsed or contributed to be 
caused by (1) any release or threatened release of waste materials or any other activity relating to the waste materials (2) 
the negligent acts or omissions of, Client} Client employees. agents ;cInd !>ubcontractors, or (3) Oient's breach of this 
agreement. 

Right-of-Entry: dient will furnish right-of-entry onto the property for GERJCEN, its employees, agents and subcontractors to 
perform the services called under this agreement alld dient represerrts that it has obtained the neeaed permits and 
licenses for the work. If Client does not own the site,'Clie'nt warrants that is has the pennlsslon of the own'ef of the site to 
grant this right-of-€!'\try to GERI<EN. and Client shall defend, indemnify and hold GERKEN harmless for any and ailliabllities 
arising from or incurred byG£RKEN from any such warranty. GERKEN Wiil ta&:e reasonable precautions to minimize damage to 
th~ property caused bV its operation~. but have not indu~d in the fee the cost of restoratiDn of damage, which may result. 
If dient desires GERKEN to restore the property to its approximate former condition, client shall so notify GERKEN- in writing. 
GEJtKEN will perfDrm the restoration work and Client agrees to pay GERKEN th~ costs· incurred for such work, pius 15% in 
addition to the fees provlded in the agreement. 

, safety: Work wiU be: performed only under s<;ife conditions. GERKEN has the right to discOntinue ar terminate operations· if, 
in its sole discretion. such discontinuation or termination is necessary for safety and/or health rea~ons. GEFt:~ shall be 
entitled to payment for all actual costs incurred <IS a rf7sult of work ~oppagefor safety reasons. 

Force Majeure: Neither partY shall be responsible for damages caused by Force Majeure or other events beyond the tonnol 
of the other partv'~nd whid1 could not reasonably have been anticip':ited or· prevented. For purposes of this agreement, 
force majeure Includes, but is not limited to, adverse weather conditions, floods. epidemics, war, riot, strikes. lockouts and 
other industrial dfsturbcmces; unk~ow~ site conditions, aCCidents, sabotage, fjre~ ~oss or failure to obtain permits, 
unavaila~lIlty of l~bor, materials~ fuel or services, court orders, acts of god, acts, orders laws. or regulations of the 
Government of the United States or the several states. or any foreign country,.or any governmentat agency. Shoutd a force 
majeJJre event ·occur. the partres shall mutually agree on the terms i;lnd tondltions upon which the services may be 
continuedJ and any deadlines for performance Py GmltEN shall be reasonably extended. 

Utilities: Client agrees to disclose and locate all utilities servilig the project site and the presence and accurate- location of 
hidden or obscure objects, including tank$ and piping relative to the services. Client agrees to indemnify, defend and hold 
harmless GERKEN from all' claims, suits, Josses, personal injuries, death or P':'0perty damage resulting from dal1l<3ge or injury 
to subsurface structures or objects (pipes, tanks, telephone 'cables, etc.) arising from the performance of GERKEN'S services 
when the existence of such are not called to GERKOCS. attention or the locations are not corre-ctJy shown on anv. plans 
furnished to GERKEN or marked at the site. ' 

GoVerning Law: This centract shall be'govenied by, construed and interpreted In accordance with the laws of the State of 
Missouri,excluding any choice laws, whicl1 may direct the applIcation of the laws or' any other Jurisdiction. 

Permit Assistance: Client s.hall assist GERKEN in obtaining all necessary governmental permits and/or approvals required for 
the performance of the services. GERKENtS obligatIons hereunder are specifically subject to issuance of aU such permits 
;3nd/or a?provals, and deacUines on Gerken's work shall be extended for any delays in the issuance of permitslleces-sary for 
the work. 
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Termination and Suspension of Wor'\(: 11,e agreement may be terminated by either partyr with or without cause, upon thirty 
(30) days written notice to'the other party. Irrespective of which party terminates or the cause (Of tack ofcaus.e~ tjierefore, 
Client shall within thirty {?oO) days. ofterminatton compensate GERkEN for all fee.s earned and costs incurred up to the time 
of termination, as well as thos.e, associated with termination and post~termination activities~ such as demobiHzatloo, 
modifying schedulesJ reasstgnilig personnel, decontaminating and or disposing of equlpment,- or dispos.al and replacement 
of cootaminated consumable:s. At any time after the total com-pensation payable to G£Ri<EN under this agreement exceeds 
~25.00P,OO; GEm<£N shan have the right to suspend further performance of the services until Client and GERKEN have 
executed a ml;>re ;:omprehensive contract. Either party-nlay'su5.pc:nd performance lMmerll'ltely Upotl becoming aware of a 
breach of the terms of this agreement bV the other party, and shall thereupon provide written notice of its intention to 
terminate. In· the event GERKEN determines there may be reasonable risk that GERKEN"S invoices may not be paid on 3 timelv 
basis, GERKEN may slIspend performal1ce'of its servlces and/or retain any .reports or other information until Client provfdes 
GERKEN with adequ;;,rte assurances of payment. The fiUng of a voluntary <ir involuntary bankruptcy petftlonJ , appointment or-a 
receiver, assignment for the benefit of creditors or other $imHar act of insolvem:.y by either party shall -constitute abreath 
'of the agreement. Termination will become effective fourteen (14) c31endar days after receipt of not,ce by the bre~ching 

party un1ess. the event(s) gMng rise breach are remedied Within the time. 

Entire Agre:ement: This agreement conStitutes the entire agreement between the parties and supersedes an'j and all prior 
written or oral agreements existing between the parties.. This: agreement may be amended onlY, by written instrument 
signed bV each party, , ' 
Pretedence: This agreement shall take-precedence over any inconsistent or contradict01)l provisions contained in any dient 
'issued purthase order, requisition, notice to proceed, or like document regarding the services. 

5urvival~ All obligations arising prior to termination of thi~ agreement and all provisions of this agreement providing 
indemnity or aHo<::ating re:sponslbility or liability between Client and GERKf;Y shall surviVe the completion of the services 
hereunder a~d the termination of this agreement. ' 

Deli\lerables and Electronic Files: In accepting and utiliZing any drawings, reports or data in hard copy Of in any furm of 
electronic media generated and furnished by. GEfUCEfli (hereinafter ,caned data), the Client agre~ that all such data are 
instruments of seNites of GErt~N, which shall be deemed the author, and shall retain all common law, statutory law and 
other .inlelleetual proPettV rights, including copyrights to the data. The client agrees no1= to r:euse the dataA in whole qr in 
part for any purpose other than for the work. "The Client agrees not to transfet- the data to others without prior written 
consent of GEf\K'EN. The dient further hereby waives all daims against GEl\KEN resulting in any way frOi1l any unauthoriz.ed 
changes to or reuse of the data for any other project by anyone other than Gana::N. The Client and GEm<EN agree tnat any 
data' furnished by eithe~ party shall confirm to the specificati?os agreed upon in the ~greement. Art'{ changes to the data 
specifjca~ions by either the Client Of GERKEN are subject to prior review ~nd acceptan~e: by the other party. Additional 
senrices hy GERKEN made necessary by changes to the -data specifications. shalt be compensated as additional services. Data 
furnished by other party shall be subjeetto an aceep1ance period ofthtrty (30} dayiduring which the reteiving party agrees 
to perform approprfate acceptance tests. The party furnishing the data shalt correct any discrepancies or errors detected 
and reported within the ac.c:e.ptance period. A.fter th~ a.c:cepbmce pe'riod,. the da~ shall be deemed to be accepted and 
neIther party shalt have any obligation to correct errors Dr maintain electronic files of the data. The Client is aware that 
differences may exist between the electronic data files delivered and the printed hard~ construction docoments. In the 
event of a conflict between the signed construction documents prepared by GE~£N and e\eetronic data flles r the signEd and 
sealed harclMcopy construction documeots shall gOl/ern. ihe data may not be used or reused by Client. its employees, agents. 
or subcontractors on any extension of the project or on any other project. without the prior written COnsent of GERKEN, 

which consent will nat be unreasonably withheld. In adtlition the Client agrees, to the fullest extent·permitted by law, to 
indemnify and hoW harmless GERKEN,. its shareholders, offkers, diri)!ctors, employees and subcontractors or consultants 
{collectNely' GERkEn} agaInst all damages, liabilities or costs, indu ding attorney fees and defense costs, arising from any 
changes to the data made by anyone other than GERKEN: or from any reuse of the data wIthout prior written consent. Under 

..'.,
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no circ.umstance shall delivery of data for use by t'he Client be deemed a sale bV GERKEN and GERK£N makes no warranties, 
express or implied of merchantability and fitness for any particular purpose regarding the data. In no event shall GERKEN be 
liable'for indirect or consequential damages as a result of the dient's use or misuse of the data. 

independent Contractor: GERKEN is an independent contractor and not an emp'oyee, agent, representative: or joint venture 
of dient. Client is interested only in the results achieved by the s.ervlces of GERKEN;' GERKEN shall determjne the time. 

, manner, means and method of doing work. Client is not responsible for deducting and shall nOt deduct from payments to 
GER~ allY amounts for withhoh:fing tax, fiCA.. insurance Dr similar items relating- to GERKEN, its employees or 
subcontractors. 

Severahility: If any portion of this agreement is determined to be unenforceabte or invalid by 'a court of competent 
jurisdiction... the remaining provisions shall remain in full force and effect and be binding ·on both parties. In the 'event any 
provisiOns are deemed unenforceable or invalid. the parties agree to revise tile agreement to replace,such provisions with 
valid and enforceable provisions thClt tiS closely as possible e)Cpress the intention of the stricken pro"Ijsion(s}. These terms 
and conditions shall survive tile completion of the services under this agreement 'and the terrnlnatlon of the agreement for­
any.cause. 

Binding Effect: This 'agreernent shan be binding upon the parties -hereto and upon' their respective heirsl personal 
representatives, successors <.Jnd pennitted assigns'. 

Assignment: 'The obligations of each pa:rty hereunder may not be assigned without the prior written consent of the other 
party. 

Amendment: This agreement may not be amended or modified except byawfiting sIgned bveach party. 

Jurisdiction and Venue of legal Proceedings: The pilrties agreethatth~ Circuit COu~ afGreene County, Missouri shall have 
exclusive jurisdiction and shall be the venue of all suits regardi~g this agreement, an d Client hereby consents to personal 
jurlsdictioll in such court. Any mediation or arbitration proceedings. between the ·pattles shall be' conducted in Greene 
CountYi Missouri. 1n any legal proceeding between· the p.arties ,regarding this agreement. the prevailing party shall be 
entitled to recover its. cQst and attorneys. feesfrorn the other partv. 

QU01"ATlt)N AND AGREEMENT ACCEPTANCE 
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IN THE MATTER OF Greg and Pamela Gibson, Respondents 
Docket No. TSCA-07-2009-0006 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I certify that a true and correct copy of the foregoing Consent Agreement and Final Order 
was sent this day in the following manner to the addressees: 

Copy hand delivered to 
Attorney for Complainant: 

Kristen Nazar 
Office of Regional Counsel 
Region VII 
United States Environmental Protection Agency 
901 N. 5th Street 
Kansas City, Kansas 66101 

Copy by Certified Mail Return Receipt to: 

Greg and/or Pamela Gibson 
11213 Nighthawk Road 
Neosho, Missouri 64850 

Dated:~ ~thbL07~f))~ 
Kathy Robinson 
Hearing Clerk, Region 7 


